Alaska Intertie Management Committee
MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, November 12, 2013
Anchorage, Alaska

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Brad Evans called the meeting of the Alaska Intertie Management Committee to order on
November 12, 2013 at 1:41 p.m. A quorum was established.

2. ROLL CALL

Members present. Bradley Evans (Chugach Electric); Jim Posey - Anchorage Municipal Light
& Power (ML&P); Joe Griffith — Matanuska Electric Association (MEA); Cory Borgeson -
Golden Valley Electric Association (GVEA); and Gene Therriault — Alaska Energy Authority
(AEA).

3. PUBLIC ROLL CALL

Public present in Anchorage: Jeff Warner and Louis Agi (Anchorage Municipal Light &
Power); Burke Wick, Brian Hickey, and Mark Johnson (Chugach Electric); Tom DeLong
(Golden Valley Electric Association); Bernie Smith (Regulatory Commission of Alaska); Bob
Day (Homer Electric Association); Kirk Warren, Sara Fisher-Goad, Kelli Veech,- and Teri
Webster (AEA); Henri Dale (AEA consultant-phone); Brian Bjorkquist (Department of Law);
Kirk Gibson (McDowell Rackner & Gibson PC-phone); Sunny Morrison (Accu-Type
Depositions); Miranda Studstill (Accu-Type Depositions).

4, PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no public comments.
5. AGENDA COMMENTS/MOTION FOR APPROVAL

MOTION: Mr. Posey made a motion to approve the agenda. Motion seconded by Mr.
Borgeson. The motion was approved unanimously.

6. OLD BUSINESS
6A.  Open Access Methodology Incorporation

MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt the third amendment of the amended and
restated Alaska Intertie agreement as amended. Motion seconded by Mr. Posey. The
motion was approved unanimously.

Mr. Hickey advised that dutifully and as promised, Mr. Bjorkquist produced the open access
item last weekend. Mr. Hickey and Mr. Agi reviewed the open access item. Mr. Hickey
believes it is headed in the right direction, but would like some time to really go through and

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 1 of 6



look at every section here and how it applies to section 16.3.4 in the 2011 agreement and make
sure that the language is consistent. Mr. Hickey does not believe there are any major
discrepancies, but wants further review. Comments will be produced by December 15, 2013, for
the Committee. The Committee will need to have approval the week of the 20th of January.

Chair Evans asked if any of the issues noted are material issues or is it just ensuring there is no
conflicting language. Mr. Hickey noted he wants to review the language. Chair Evans asked if
the document ever says that open access is free access. Mr. Hickey stated the document
specifically says open access is not free access.

Mr. Griffith asked if the document says you can seize private property. Mr. Hickey advised the
document does not say that.

Mr. Bjorkquist encouraged this type of scrutiny of the document and requested Mr. Hickey
inform him if there are any issues. Mr. Bjorkquist advised Mr. Hickey not to assume that
anything was purposeful if there is an inconsistency.

Mr. Bjorkquist advised he sees one correction necessary for the motion, under Paragraph 4.0 on
page two, inserted after September 1, 2013, should be "or November 15, 2013." September 1
relates to the first amendment and November 15, 2013, relates to the second amendment. Mr.
Griffith and Mr. Posey accepted the friendly amendment.

Mr. Borgeson requested Mr. Bjorkquist give a summary of the voting process on the open access
rules. He asked if the open access rules have been voted on or has that been delayed three times
now. Mr. Bjorkquist said his recollection is they have been delayed three times now. The
reasons for having the amendments is that the agreement has open access provisions to be
adopted by a date certain and the amendments have given more time to adopt those open access
rules and extending the time in the agreement to do so.

1. NEW BUSINESS
7A.  Under frequency load shed

Chair Evans requested a brief update to see if there are any points that need to be worked
through. Mr. Warner provided a written load shed study update, including a timeline and outline
of what the System Study Subcommittee will perform during the study. He noted the final report
is scheduled for November 1, 2014. The preliminary cost estimate for the project is $150,000
and the method of payment has not yet been determined by the Intertie Management Committee.
Chair Evans commented that issue is addressed later on the agenda.

Mr. Griffith inquired who the keeper is of the power system simulator/electrical model. Mr.
Warner believes the state is the keeper of the power system simulator/electrical model. Mr.
Griffith inquired if it was AEA. Mr. Warner thinks AEA is the owner of the power system
simulator/electrical model and each utility has members and different engineering groups who
perform the studies. Mr. Griffith stated he asked the question because he does not know who is
in charge of keeping it current. Mr. Warner believes that GVEA pays the yearly fee and then the

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 2 of 6



other utilities reimburse them. Chair Evans asked if the studies are both load flow and stability.
Mr. Warner stated as far as he knows, it is both load flow and stability.

Mr. Hickey commented the System Study Subcommittee is responsible for updating the model
and the most recent model was updated by Dr. Jim Cote for AEA when they did the Railbelt
Integrated Resources Plan and it has a 2015 and a 2020 base case in it right now. Chair Evans
advised there was a reason for the effort because all these changes need to be studied and if we
need to make changes to the basic under frequency load shed scheme, then better now than later.

Mr. Hickey noted each utility's dynamics models need to be updated with recent test data. Chair
Evans commented that was supposed to be part of this effort. Mr. Griffith asked if Electric
Power Systems used the model also in their study last summer. Chair Evans confirmed they did.

Mr. Dale inquired if there is a master version of the database or document control and who has
possession of that. Mr. Hickey stated there is a copy but does not believe there is an official
document control on it. Mr. Hickey stated Mr. Cody has been the master of maintaining the
database. Mr. Griffith commented the model he received for Matanuska Electric Association's
studies clearly was not current and that is why he started asking the question of who keeps the
model current.

Mr. Warner advised the Machine Rating Subcommittee has been asked to meet to assist with the
effort as far as minute data, static data, and dynamic data. Mr. Griffith asked if the
subcommittee will benchmark that data against actual encountered conditions in order to know if
it does replicate the system. Mr. Warner agreed.

7B. 2014 1st quarter challenges of pool utilities

Chair Evans stated the purpose of this agenda item is to identify the pool challenges and to
develop a work plan to address the issues, which can include energy accounting issues, reserve
accounting issues, incorporating others into the intertie through the open access rule. Chair
Evans advised there is a regulatory compliance hearing in January on non-dispatchable
resources.

Mr. Griffith believes the modeling Mr. Warner has proposed is going to address the upcoming
challenges. Mr. Griffith does not believe anyone on the Committee has a complete
understanding of the implications of changing the generation suites. He is looking forward to the
outcome of the modeling.

Mr. Borgeson asked if AEA has any concerns for the intertie and what challenges they might see.

Chair Evans stated the entire pool is being challenged from different areas. He recommended
one of the ways of meeting these challenges is looking at the structure of the Intertie
Management Committee and what committees are present. He suggested adding a more formal
compliance committee. Chair Evans stated there is currently an Operating Committee, but
compliance is usually not the same committee as the Operating Committee.

Chair Evans encouraged the Intertie Management Committee members to create a resolution
changing some of the committee structure in the Intertie Management Committee to align itself

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 3 of 6



more closely with the Lower 48 and what is a more modern committee structure. Chair Evans
commented it is important for the Intertie Management Committee to prepare and align the group
to address issues in the event an entity brought forth a proposal that was deleterious to the system
and would impair the operation. He requested the Committee think about how to handle that
kind of situation and how the Committee would represent itself.

Chair Evans advised he is going to make some formal proposals and requested the Committee
members consider providing draft recommendations.

Mr. Griffith asked if a chapter was written on this topic in the Intertie Management Committee
agreement or was it removed. Chair Evans stated he wants to review the contract to see what
type of support is included. He noted everybody here working at the table is doing the right
thing within the reliability group and the asset management group. He noted the State is
coordinating and cooperating on implementing reliability rules and rational open access rules.
Chair Evans commented more still could be done to address these issues.

Mr. Griffith stated the Intertie Management Committee will be accused of throwing barriers in
front of progress. Chair Evans added there are a lot of people in this room that were responsible
for the great strides and improvement in reliability of the system. He stated the system has some
structural problems, but we do not have the funds to solve those. Chair Evans asked how the
Intertie Management Committee will represent the reliability standards in a regulatory
proceeding, because there is no regulatory committee. He asked if the Intertie Management
Committee should have a regulatory committee. Mr. Griffith stated he does not have an answer
now, but will think about it. Mr. Griffith recommended the Intertie Management Committee file
the reliability criteria as planned. He suggested someone pay close attention to the process
through the commission because the approval is not automatic. Chair Evans inquired how does
the Intertie Management Committee support that effort, because that usually means having a
budget.

7C.  Reliability / Operating reserves

Mr. Griffith asked if Matanuska Electric Association's big outage, the one where the jumper
came off, caused any problems. Mr. Warren said it took out the equipment line until such time
as it could be isolated. Chair Evans recommended the operating group review the unit trips and
ensure there is a rich database, so we are capturing the data we need. Chair Evans stated there
are many opportunities to utilize field data as benchmarks. He emphasized the importance of the
operating group paying close attention to data collection.

Mr. Griffith asked if the high performance response units are working the way they should be.
He noted he has not seen any problems. Chair Evans asked if the largest unit has been tripped
lately. Mr. Wick stated a big unit has not been tripped. He noted the last big trip was due to a
gas compressor issue and shut down the entire Static Var Compensation System (SVS). Chair
Evans noted it is not so much what caused the outage versus the response of the system. Mr.
Wick noted there were some system response problems during that trip that have since been
remedied. He advised no repeat of those kinds of system response problems have occurred.

Chair Evans inquired if the monitors are digital and if they are capturing data at key points. Mr.
Wick agreed. Chair Evans noted that in the past, the monitors did not record properly when

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 4 of 6



there was a voltage problem. He asked if this problem has been remedied and if they have their
own uninterruptible stand-by power systems. Mr. Wick agreed. Chair Evans asked if this issue
needs to be reviewed, does there need to be more of them, and are they in the right places. Chair
Evans requested those questions be reviewed and answered by the Operating Committee or a
working group of the Operating Committee.

Mr. Borgeson explained GVEA has been utilizing the intertie significantly more in 2013 than
they did in 2012. Mr. Borgeson commented the intertie has functioned very well for GVEA.
Some issues have occurred with recloser actions or failures when the SVS went down, but
GVEA is very satisfied with the overall operation and use of the line.

Mr. Griffith asked Mr. Posey if the reasons for the transmission outages have been determined.
Mr. Griffith reported Matanuska Electric Association replaced three or four insulators and asked
if that solved the problem. Mr. Posey believes the lines are coming out tomorrow. They were
scheduled a couple of weeks ago, but because of the SVS work, the replacement will occur
tomorrow.

Chair Evans advised the work at the Hope Substation has been completed with breakers, relays
and the line will be sectionalized. Mr. Griffith commented it is a nice looking substation. Chair
Evans hopes it portends more improvements for the future. It is a fairly long line in the Chugach
Electric system and a big improvement. Chair Evans advised that being able to have the line
automatically sectionalize will raise reliability for those people that are on the line. The project
came in ahead of schedule. He expressed his appreciation to the State on moving some money to
assist with the getaway structures because they were not part of the substation, but rather the line
itself. He noted that was a really great effort and thanked all those who supported that
improvement.

7D.  Budget for Reliability expense

Chair Evans recommended expanding this agenda item because it could be budget for non-
intertie related expenses, including regulatory, tariff or compliance issues. Chair Evans noted the
algorithms need to be developed to include those issues. Chair Evans commented the Intertie
Management Committee is already being asked to fund a study which is at least $150,000. Chair
Evans requested Mr. Borgeson volunteer to draft the proposal for an algorithm of sharing these
budget expenses. Chair Evans emphasized the reason of this particular algorithm determination
needs to be clearly explained because it likely will not be the same algorithm used for the
allocation of spinning reserves. Chair Evans does not believe the algorithm for this budget
expense should necessarily follows the logic around the largest unit. Mr. Borgeson accepted the
appointment and appreciates the opportunity. He stated he will work toward creating a system
and will communicate with everyone to get input.

Chair Evans recommended Mr. Borgeson propose a budget amendment for what the Intertie
Management Committee has already put in the budget. Chair Evans asked Mr. Warner if there is
currently an adequate budget for the work he is doing on the study. Mr. Warner responded that
there is not an adequate budget. Chair Evans requested the state of Alaska be included and assist
with determining an equitable way of sharing effort here where there is not an easily identifiable
common denominator on who should pay more or who should pay less.

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 5 of 6



Ms. Fisher-Goad volunteered herself and Ms. Veech to work with Mr. Borgeson specifically on
this budget issue and particularly on the necessary budget amendment.

Chair Evans believes it is not well-known in the public that just to have the debate, costs the
Intertic Management Committee money and they have to turn around and charge our members
for this. Chair Evans commented all of this work is not free and there is a huge amount of
money that gets spent under the line for advice from lawyers and consultants to formulate
opinions on issuc and somewhere along the line, that cost is going to have to be recognized.

Mr. Griffith quipped that he believes the answer is to “underground” everything, Chair Evans
stated he is not sure that is going to help. Mr. Posey reported that current distribution problems
in downtown Anchorage right now are underground/underwater. Mr. Griffith commented it is
out of sight, out of mind. Chair Evans said it is time to formalize this budget with the right
structure to recognize the amount of work that is being done.

Chair Evans asked Mr. Warner if there was anything outstanding that caused a problem with the
operating budget, the intertie and the revenue. Mr. Warner agreed everything is balanced out and
is fine.

8. NEXT MEETING DATE

The next meeting will be scheduled in the first part of December, A meeting notice will be sent
out.

9. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business of the IMC, the meeting adjourned at 2:33 pm.

IMC Meeting Minutes-November 12, 2013 Page 6 of 6





